




 
 
 

Closed Session Minutes 
Of the 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 

 July 8, 2020 

Upon motion made in public session, Chairman Kane called for adjournment into 
closed session to discuss the following items:  

1. Discussion on Planning for Model Progression– Authority General 
Provisions Article, §3-103 and §3-104 
 

2. Update on Administration of Model - Authority General Provisions Article, 
§3-103 and §3-104 
 

The Closed Session was called to order at 11:42 p.m. and held under authority of 
§3-103 and §3-104 of the General Provisions Article.                                                                                                                    
 
In attendance via conference call in addition to Chairman Kane were 
Commissioners Antos, Bayless, Cohen, Colmers, Elliott, and Malhotra.  
 
In attendance via conference call representing Staff were Katie Wunderlich, Chris 
Peterson, Allan Pack, William Henderson, Alyson Schuster, Tequila Terry, Will 
Daniel, Joe Delenick, Claudine Williams, Amanda Vaughn, and Dennis Phelps.  
 
Also attending via conference call were Eric Lindemann, Commission Consultant, 
and Stan Lustman and Tom Werthman, Commission Counsel. 
 
 

Item One 
 

Eric Lindemann, Commission Consultant, updated the Commission on Maryland 
Medicare Fee-For-Service TCOC versus the nation. 
 
 

Item Two 
 
Tequila Terry, Deputy Director-Payment Reform and Provider Alignment, 
presented an overview of HSCRC’s new visual identity project. 
 
 
 
 



Item Three 
 

Kate Wunderlich, Executive Director, updated the Commission and the 
Commission discussed surge Capacity Planning. 
 
 

Item Four 
 

Ms. Wunderlich presented to the Commission and the Commission discussed 
staff’s suggestions on Strategic Priorities and Policy Development to evolve and 
improve the Total Cost of Care (TCOC) Model. The suggestions included care 
transformation, quality and population health, payment reform and provider 
alignment strategies, rate setting and financial methodology development, and long 
term transformation of the TCOC Model.    
 
Ms. Wunderlich announced that Chris Peterson, Director-Payment Reform and 
Provider Alignment, was leaving the staff. Ms. Wunderlich and the Commissioners 
wished him well and thanked for his many  Significant accomplishments relative to 
the development and implementation of the TCOC Model. 
 
 
The Closed Session was adjourned at 1:02 p.m. 
   



The Health Services Cost Review Commission is an independent agency of the State of Maryland 

P: 410.764.2605    F: 410.358.6217          4160 Patterson Avenue  |  Baltimore, MD 21215          hscrc.maryland.gov 

 

  

 

 

MINUTES OF THE 

575th MEETING OF THE 

HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

July 8, 2020 

 

Chairman Adam Kane called the public meeting to order at 11:42 am. Commissioners Joseph 

Antos, PhD, Victoria Bayless, Stacia Cohen, John Colmers, James Elliott, M.D., and Sam 

Malhotra were also in attendance.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Antos and seconded by 

Commissioner Colmers, the meeting was moved to Closed Session. Chairman Kane reconvened 

the public meeting at 1:12 p.m.  

 

REPORT OF JULY 8, 2020 CLOSED SESSION 

 

Mr. Dennis Phelps, Deputy Director, Audit & Compliance, summarized the minutes of the July 

8, 2020 Closed Session.     

ITEM I 

REVIEW OF THE MINUTES FROM THE JUNE 10, 2020 CLOSED SESSION AND 

PUBLIC MEETING    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

The Commissioners voted unanimously to approve the minutes of the June 10, 2020 Public 

Meeting and Closed Session minutes.  

 

ITEM II 

CASES CLOSED 

 

2520A- University of Maryland Medical Center       2521A- University of Maryland Medical 

Center 

2322A- Johns Hopkins Health System 

 

ITEM III 

TOTAL COST of CARE MODEL STATE ACTIVITIES UPDATE 

 

Statewide Integrated Health Improvement Strategy 

 

Ms. Tequila Terry, Deputy Director, Payment Reform and Provider Alignment, Ms. Anne 

Langley, Center for Population Health Initiative, Maryland Department of Health, and Mr. Steve 

Schuh, Executive Director, Maryland Opioid Command Center, Office of the Governor, 

presented an update on Statewide Integrated Health Improvement Strategy (see “Statewide 

Integrated Health Improvement Strategy” on the HSCRC website). 

 



 

 
 

2 

In December 2019, the State of Maryland and Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 

(CMS) signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) agreeing to establish a Statewide 

Integrated Health Improvement Strategy (SIHIS).  This initiative is designed to engage state 

agencies and private sector partners to collaborate and invest in improving health, addressing 

disparities, and reducing health care costs for Marylanders.   

 

The guiding principles for the SIHIS are:  

 

 Maximize the population health improvement opportunities made possible by the Total 

Cost of Care (TCOC) Model.  

 Goals, measures, and targets should be specific to Maryland and established through a 

collaborative public process.  

 Goals, measures, and targets should reflect an all-payer perspective. 

 Goals, measures, and targets should capture statewide improvements, including improved 

health equity. 

 Goals for the three domains of the integrated strategy should be synergistic and mutually-

reinforcing.  

 Measures should be focused on outcomes whenever possible; milestones, including 

process measures, may be used to signal progress toward targets. 

 Maryland’s strategy must promote public and private partnerships with shared resources 

and infrastructure.  

 

The MOU requires the State to propose goals, measures, milestones, and targets in three domains 

by the end of CY 2020.  The three domains are Hospital Quality, Transformation across the 

System, and Total Population Health. The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Innovation 

(CMMI) has stated that in order for the TCOC Model to be made permanent, the State must 

sustain and improve high quality care under the population base hospital finance model, achieve 

annual cost saving targets, and achieve progress on the SIHIS.  

  

Within the Total Population Health domain, the State has the option to identify three priority 

areas to focus on improving as part of the TCOC Model.    

 

 The first statewide priority area is diabetes, which was identified by the Maryland State 

Secretary of Health.  Further information on this statewide priority and Maryland’s 

Statewide Diabetes Action Plan is available on the MDH website.   

 The second statewide priority area is opioids, which was identified by the Lieutenant 

Governor through the Maryland Heroin and Opioid Emergency Task Force.  This 

initiative is being led by the Opioid Operational Command Center (OOCC).   

 The State also has the option of identifying a third population health focus by December 

31, 2020.  



 

 
 

3 

  

The State must set targets and demonstrate progress in each of the three domains.  CMMI will 

review data through CY 2021 to make decisions about making the TCOC Model permanent.  

The HSCRC Performance Measurement Workgroup will be responsible for domain one 

(Hospital Quality).  Domain two (Transformation across the System) will be the responsibility of 

both the HSCRC Performance Measurement Workgroup and the HSCRC Total Cost of Care 

Workgroup.  Within domain three (Population Health), the Maryland Department of Health will 

be responsible for the Diabetes priority area, and the OOCC will be responsible for the Opioid 

priority area.   

 

Staff intend to present milestones and targets to the Commissioners during the October 14th 

Public Meeting and to present the proposal to the Commissioners during the December 9th 

Public Meeting.  The SIHIS proposal is due to CMS on December 31st.  

 

Chairman Kane asked whether the priority areas are separate from the incentives the GBR 

methodology would be expected to produce.   

 

Ms. Terry stated that they are indeed separate, particularly domains two and three, which are not 

limited to hospital providers.  

  

Commissioner Colmers questioned to what extent the initiatives should focus on Medicare 

versus other populations, given that CMS’ main focus will be on Medicare patients.   

 

Ms. Terry responded that domain three (Population Health) is intended to look at health 

challenges of all Maryland citizens, not just in the Medicare population.  

Ms. Langley updated the Commission on the efforts to coordinate state activities to prevent and 

control diabetes.  A Diabetes Target Measures Work Group will be convene to generate and 

evaluate a panel of potential measures. The group will include representatives from the hospital 

industry, MDH, CRISP, the American Diabetes Association, payers, the clinician community, 

diabetes specialists, and other experts. The goal is to align activities and select clinically relevant 

measures that improve health outcomes. 

Mr. Schuh updated the Commission on the Opioid Operational Command Center (OOCC). OOCC 

was created by Governor Larry Hogan in 2017 to coordinate the statewide response to the opioid 

crisis. The OOCC will lead the population health priority on opioid screening, prevention, and 

treatment. OOCC will draw strategies and potential measures from its strategic plan, the Maryland 

Inter-Agency Opioid Coordinating Plan. Mr. Schuh will vet potential measures with the state 

partner group, composed of State Agencies and other stakeholders including MHA and with the 

HSCRC. 



 

 
 

4 

 

Commissioner Malhotra asked whether the OOCC has begun gathering data to determine where 

resources should be deployed.   

 

Mr. Schuh responded that the OOCC is currently gathering that data with the intention of 

identifying any gaps or surplus of treatment delivery capacity in each county in the State. 

 

Maryland Primary Care Program 

 

Dr. Howard Haft, Executive Director. Maryland Primary Care Program (MDPCP), provided an 

update on MDPCP activities. 

 

MDPCP is a voluntary program open to all qualifying Maryland primary care providers which 

provides funding and support for the delivery of advanced primary care throughout the State. 

The MDPCP supports the overall health care transformation process and allows primary care 

providers to play an increased role in illness prevention, management of chronic disease, and the 

prevention of unnecessary hospital utilization.   

  

As of CY 2020 Quarter 2, MDPCP has approximately 2,000 aligned providers (up from 1,500 in 

2019) and 347,000 Medicare Fee for Service beneficiaries attributed (up from 220,000 in 2019).  

Currently, MDPCP is working with the Advisory Council and CMMI to develop an optional 

track three proposal modeled after Primary Care First.  MDPCP is also further embracing data 

driven care by utilizing data tools to reduce avoidable hospital utilization and unnecessary 

Emergency Department (ED use.  Finally, MDPCP is working to manage population health 

during COVID-19 by assisting in statewide testing of primary care patients and focusing on 

improving access to care through telehealth.  

 

Commissioner Elliott asked whether there was any data that links enhanced access to primary 

care and avoidable utilization.   

 

Dr. Haft responded that enhanced access to primary care is principal driver in reducing avoidable 

utilization.  Data on the availability of primary care is used to predict where avoidable utilization 

would is likely to occur, which can be addressed by care interventions. 

 

Commissioner Bayless asked Dr. Haft if there was anything that has surprised or disappointed 

him so far in the program. 

 

Dr. Haft replied that he has been surprised by the overwhelmingly positive response from the 

physicians and level of engagement. Dr. Haft stated that he has been disappointed by the failure 

to receive credible data in a timely fashion. 



 

 
 

5 

   
Chairman Kane asked how many of the MDPCP physicians are health system aligned or owned.  

Dr. Haft responded that approximately 50 percent of the physicians are health system aligned or 

owned.   

 

Chairman Kane then asked whether there was a difference between independent and hospital 

aligned/owned practices in terms of resources in already in place at the onset of the program, and 

in the outcomes of independent and hospital aligned/owned practices.   

 

Dr. Haft replied that the best performers are the small, independent, highly engaged practices.  

  

Commissioner Cohen asked if shifts in risk scores were being tracked, since care management 

fees are dependent on risk scores.  

 

Dr. Haft responded that they are currently being tracked.   

 

Commissioner Cohen requested that Dr. Haft include risk score data in future presentations to 

the Commission. 

 

Care Redesign Programs and Care Transformation Initiatives 

 

Mr. Willem Daniel, Deputy Director, Payment Reform and Provider Alignment, presented 

Staff’s update on the Care Redesign Program (CRP) and Care Transformation Initiative (CTI) 

programs (See “CTI Update” on the HSCRC website). 

 

CRP was created to allow hospitals to make gain sharing payments to nonhospital providers.  

CTIs were created in order to address some of the limitations with the CRP.  Under CTI, 

hospitals are able to define their own CTI population, rather than following CMS definitions.  

Hospitals will also receive 100 percent of the Total Costs of Care savings that they produce 

under CTI, and are not required to make incentive payments.  Finally, CTI seeks to minimize the 

administrative burden by not requiring any reporting beyond defining the CTI population. 

 

The CTI policy incentivizes hospitals to manage the total cost of care of the selected population. 

Hospitals receive 100 percent of the achieved savings on beneficiaries in their defined 

population.  The savings are calculated by comparing the total cost of care of the included 

beneficiaries to similar beneficiaries in a prior year.  Payments are offset by revenue reduction 

across all non-participating hospitals in the State in order to incentivize participation by all 

hospitals.  The CTI process will also allow the Commission to calculate the Return on 

Investment (ROI) on interventions, which will help illustrate the TCOC Model’s care 

transformation impact to CMMI. 



 

 
 

6 

 

The following five CTI thematic areas have been identified to-date:  

 

 Care Transitions (Target Population: Patients discharged from the hospital)  

 Palliative Care (Target Population: Patients seen at the hospital who have a serious 

diagnosis) 

 Primary Care (Target Population: Patients seen by primary care practices) 

 Community Care (Target Population: Patients residing in Skilled Nursing Facilities or 

assisted living facilities) 

 Emergency Care (Target Population: Patients seen at the ED but not admitted to the 

hospital) 

 

The CTI policy is scheduled to begin on January 1, 2021.  The original policy was delayed by 6 

months due to the COVID virus state of emergency.  Final implementation protocols will be due 

in October of 2020. The first performance period will be calendar year 2021 with payments made 

beginning July 2022.  New CTI Thematic Areas can be developed throughout CY 2022.  Staff 

will also explore additional methodologies to set a target price like the MA or PACE benchmarks 

so that measures will be developed to report the amount that hospitals spend on their CTIs. These 

costs can be used to calculate an ROI on their interventions. These costs can be included in the 

Inter-hospital Cost Comparison methodology to incorporate population health spending into our 

efficiency policies. Development of the next CTI Thematic Areas and methodologies will 

continue through 2021. 

 

Commissioner Elliott asked if there is an overlap between the primary care thematic area of the 

CTI program and MDPCP. 

 

Mr. Daniel responded that there is some overlap.  Mr. Daniel also stated that the CTI policy has 

more total cost of care risk/reward than MDPCP, but has fewer restrictions on  individual 

practices use of care management fees.  

  

Chairman Kane asked what the magnitude of yearly revenue moved around by the CTI program 

is expected to be.   

 

Mr. Daniel replied that the expected amount would depend on expected savings and success.  

Mr. Daniel stated that some of the interventions would already be mature, and thus expected to 

yield higher savings, while new interventions would likely see a ramp-up period before 

achieving substantial savings.  

 

Commissioner Kane suggested that Staff should spend more time thinking about the magnitude 

of savings, since the program would require a lot of work for hospitals.  



 

 
 

7 

 

Ms. Katie Wunderlich, Executive Director, stated that Staff addresses the magnitude of the 

targets for each thematic area and noted that the administrative burden of the CTI program is 

much lower than that of the CRP program. 

 

ITEM IV 

COVID-19 LONG-TERM CARE PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 

 

Ms. Terry presented the Staff’s update on the COVID-19 Long Term Care Partnership Grant 

program 

(see” COVID-19 Long Term Care Partnership Grant Program” on the HSCRC website). 

 

The COVID-19 Long Term Care Partnership (LTC) Grant Program is intended to foster 

collaboration between hospitals, long-term care facilities, and other congregate living facilities 

that serve vulnerable populations during the COVID-19 crisis.  Under the LTC Grant Program, 

hospitals and their long-term care/congregate living partners will collaborate on best practices to 

reduce the spread of COVID-19 in these settings through a focus on patient management,  

infection prevention, and infection control  The grant program is intended to be a one-year 

program starting July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. Grant awards will be issued in order of 

receipt until the statewide approved funding limit of $10 million has been met. The grant 

program is being funded by the previously unallocated 3rd funding stream of the Regional 

Partnership Catalyst Grant Program. 

 

In order to eligible for the LTC grants: 

 

 Hospitals must partner with at least one licensed long-term care and/or congregate living 

facility that services vulnerable populations and is operating in Maryland  

 Hospitals should work with partners that are in the same geographic areas and with whom 

they have a “911 relationship” with to handle the majority of emergencies.  

 As of the application date, hospitals must have a collaboration agreement with the long-

term care/congregate living facility that is currently operating in Maryland to be eligible 

for grant funding. 

 Applications must include a list of strategies that will be implemented to address 

COVID-19 patient management, infection prevention, and infection control. 

 Details about arrangements for resource sharing, financial payments, and/or in-kind 

support must be disclosed in the applications. 

 

Staff’s recommendation is that the Commissioners delegate authority to Staff to evaluate 

applications submitted for funding and to make award determinations up to the approved limit of 

$10M, and that Staff work with one or more Commissioners during the process. 



 

 
 

8 

 

Commissioner Antos questioned whether the grant funding would be for one year from the 

approval of the application, or be retroactive to July 1, 2020.  

 

 Ms. Terry replied that the funding would be provided through hospital rates for one year as of 

July 1, 2020.  

 

Commissioner Antos noted that hospitals would require time to strategize and prepare their 

applications.   

 

Commissioner Antos then asked whether there was a connection between the LTC Grants and 

the Maryland Patient Safety Center (MPSC). 

 

Ms. Terry responded that LTC activities could be aligned with those of MPSC, but that Staff 

would determine whether an application is requesting funding that would duplicate MPSC 

funding. 

  

Chairman Kane emphasized that the LTC grants is not limited to non-profit organizations, and 

that if hospitals want to participate in multiple types of grants they are encouraged to do so. 

 

Commissioners voted unanimously to approve Staff’s recommendation. 

 

ITEM V 

FY 2019 COMMUNITY BENEFITS REPORT 

 

Mr. Daniel, and Laura Spicer, Director, Health Reform Studies, Hilltop Institute, presented 

Staff’s FY 2019 Community Benefit Report. (See “Maryland Hospital Community Benefit 

Report FY 2019). 

 

The term community benefit refers to initiatives, activities, and investments undertaken by tax 

exempt hospitals to improve the health of the communities they serve. Maryland law defines 

community benefit as an activity that intends to address community needs and priorities 

primarily through disease prevention and improvement of health status. Examples of community 

benefit activities may include the following: 

 

 Health services provided to vulnerable or underserved populations such as Medicaid, 

Medicare, or Maryland Children’s Health Program participants  

 Financial or in-kind support of public health programs  

 Donations of funds, property, or other resources that contribute to a community priority  

 Health care cost containment activities  



 

 
 

9 

 Health education, screening, and prevention services  

 Financial or in-kind support of the Maryland Behavioral Health Crisis Response System  

 

In 2001, the Maryland General Assembly passed House Bill 15 which required the HSCRC to 

collect community benefit information from individual hospitals and compile it into a statewide, 

publicly available Community Benefit Report (CBR). In response to this legislative mandate, the 

HSCRC initiated a community benefit reporting system for Maryland’s nonprofit hospitals that 

included two components. The first component, the Community Benefit Collection Tool, is a 

spreadsheet that inventories community benefit expenses in specific categories defined by the 

HSCRC’s Community Benefit Reporting Guidelines and Standard Definitions. These categories 

are similar but not identical to the federal community benefit reporting categories. The second 

component of Maryland’s reporting system is the CBR narrative report. The HSCRC developed 

the Community Benefit Narrative Reporting Instructions to guide hospitals’ preparation of these 

reports, which strengthen and supplement the quantitative community benefit data that hospitals 

report in their inventory spreadsheets. 

 

In March 2020, the Maryland General Assembly passed Senate Bill 774, which amends the 

statutory requirements for hospital community benefit reporting. This bill requires the HSCRC to 

establish a Community Benefit Reporting Workgroup and adopt regulations recommended by 

the Workgroup regarding community benefit reporting. The bill also modifies the definition of 

community benefit and expands the list of items that hospitals must include in their CBR. 

 

All 50 Maryland hospitals submitted FY 2019 CBRs, showing a total of $1.89 billion in 

community benefit expenditures, which is a slight increase over FY 2018 ($1.75 billion). The 

distribution of expenditures across community benefit categories remained similar to prior years, 

with mission-driven services accounting for the majority of expenditures. Expenditures as a 

percentage of operating expenses also slightly increased from FY 2018 (6.7 percent) to FY 2019 

(7.4 percent).   

  

The narrative portion of the CBR provides the HSCRC with richer detail on hospital community 

benefits and Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) activities beyond what is included 

in the financial report. Encouraging findings of the review include a senior-level commitment to 

community benefit activities and community engagement. For example, 90 percent of hospitals 

employed a population health director, and most reported that these staff members were involved 

in selecting the community health needs to target and in developing community benefit 

initiatives. Additionally, 87 percent of hospitals employ staff dedicated to community benefit. 

Community benefit initiatives frequently targeted diabetes treatment/prevention, which is 

consistent with needs identified in hospital CHNAs and the goals of the State’s new Diabetes 

Action Plan.  

  



 

 
 

10 

The review also identified the following areas for improvement:  

 

 Most, but not all, hospitals reported working with their local health department during the 

CHNA process.  All hospitals are encouraged to include the local health departments in 

this process.  Hospitals are also encouraged to improve visibility and reporting on CHNA 

activities  

 Staff noted variation in the format and content of the hospitals’ financial assistance policy 

documents. Standardization of these documents could provide greater clarity for 

consumers  

 Only 13 hospitals reported collaborating with post-acute facilities in their community 

benefit initiatives. Greater collaboration with such facilities may help the State to achieve 

the new goals within the Total Cost of Care Model, which emphasizes collaboration with 

community-based providers to address population needs  

 Inconsistencies and ambiguity in reporting on physician subsidies makes it difficult to tie 

these expenditures to needs specifically identified in the CHNA or to gaps in physician 

availability. Revisions to the reporting instructions will allow for more precise analyses 

in subsequent years  

  

With the passage of Senate Bill 774 during the 2020 legislative session, the HSCRC Staff will 

work with stakeholders in the coming months to address these improvement areas, as well as the 

changes outlined in the bill. Corresponding changes will be made to next year’s reporting tool. 

 

Commissioner Colmers asked what the timing is regarding the State mandated changes.   

 

Mr. Daniel replied that the legislation requires a plan to change the regulations, but does not 

directly state when this needs to be done.  Mr. Daniel stated that the plan can be vague initially 

and then made more specific once Staff meets with a technical group to finalize the details.  

Commissioner Bayless asked if there was an expected percent of spending associated with 

community benefit relative to the value of hospitals’ tax-exempt status.  

Mr. Daniel replied there is a general expectation for aggregate community benefit spending to 

exceed tax-exempt savings. 

Ms. Bayless also asked what HSCRC staff intend to understand from the physician subsidy 

component of mission-driven services 

Mr. Daniel said HSCRC staff intend to better understand unregulated spending, including how 

hospitals address access to physician services.  

 



 

 
 

11 

Commissioner Cohen questioned whether the Commission could shift from process-heavy 

reporting to a more outcomes based reporting in the future.   

 

Mr. Daniel stated that Staff share Commissioner Cohen’s view that the Commission should 

transition to more of a focus on outcomes in the reporting.    

Chairman Kane questioned why HSCRC is responsible for the hospital community benefit 

reporting process and suggested MDH should be responsible, as he believes community benefit 

reporting is inconsistent with HSCRC’s. legal mandates. 

Ms. Wunderlich stated that coordination with MDH would be ideal, but HSCRC is legislatively 

required to manage this process.  

Chairman Kane stated that efforts should be made to shift this work to MDH, as they are best 

suited to assess community benefit activities. 

ITEM VI 

POLICY UPDATE AND DISCUSSION 

Ms. Wunderlich announced that Chris Peterson, Director, Payment Reform and Provider 

Alignment was leaving the staff to take a position with the MITRE Corporation. Ms. Wunderlich 

thank Mr. Peterson for his stellar service in the implementation of the TCOC Model over the years 

and for the invaluable contributions Mr. Peterson made in all areas of HSCRC focus. 

 

CY 2019 Model Performance Overview 

 

Ms. Wunderlich stated that the HSCRC received a letter affirming Maryland’s performance 

against the TCOC Model.  Ms. Wunderlich stated that according to the letter, Maryland met all 

model requirements for CY 2019.   Maryland exceeded the CY 2019 target savings of $120M, 

with an actual savings of $340M.  Since the TCOC Model allows the State to roll over half of 

CY 2019 excess savings to CY 2020, meaning that $110M in savings will be rolled forward to 

CY 2020.  In addition, Ms. Wunderlich noted that Maryland’s performance through March 2020 

has been favorable. 

 

Covid-19 Volume and Financial Trends 

 

Mr. William Henderson Director, Medical Economics and Data Analytics, stated that for the two 

weeks ending June 14th, statewide inpatient revenue was 106.4 percent of historic levels, while 

statewide outpatient revenue was 85.2 percent of historic levels (up from 67 percent in the first 

two weeks of May).  Mr. Henderson noted that the May statewide average daily census (ADC) of 



 

 
 

12 

COVID cases was approximately 22 percent of the May 2019 ADC, and that while several D.C. 

area hospitals were outliers, the majority of facilities experienced between 15 percent and 30 

percent of their typical ADC in COVID cases.    

  

Mr. Henderson stated that the FY 2020 undercharge is now expected to fall in the range of 

$0.97B to $1.1B, before accounting for Federal funding.  A $1B undercharge represents a 5.5 

percent undercharge at full GBR.  Mr. Henderson stated that as of May 15, the total amount of 

federal funding received by Maryland hospitals was $546M, $487M for regulated activities and 

$59M for unregulated activities.    

  

 

ITEM IX 

                 HEARING AND MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

 

September 9, 2020                HSCRC Conference Room  

                                              Times to be determined, 4160 Patterson Avenue 

 

October 14, 2020                  HSCRC Conference Room 

                                              Times to be determined, 4160 Patterson Avenue                                                                                                                   

                      

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 

 

 

 



Cases Closed 

 

 

 

 

 

The closed cases from last month are listed in the agenda 



H.S.C.R.C's CURRENT LEGAL DOCKET STATUS (OPEN)

AS OF AUGUST 31, 2020

A:   PENDING LEGAL ACTION : NONE
B:   AWAITING FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION: NONE
C:   CURRENT CASES:

Rate Order
Docket Hospital Date Decision Must be Analyst's
Number Name Docketed Required by: Issued by: Purpose Initials

2523N McNew Family Health Center 6/1/2020 9/9/2020 12/29/2020 PTH & STH WH

2528A Johns Hopkins Health System 8/19/2020 N/A N/A ARM DNP 

2529A Johns Hopkins Health System 8/24/2020 N/A N/A ARM DNP 

2530N McNew Family Health Center 8/26/2020 9/25/2020 1/23/2021 AMB & ANCILARIES WH

PROCEEDINGS REQUIRING COMMISSION ACTION - NOT ON OPEN DOCKET

None



File
Status

OPEN

OPEN

OPEN

OPEN



The Health Services Cost Review Commission is an independent agency of the State of Maryland 
P: 410.764.2605    F: 410.358.6217          4160 Patterson Avenue  |  Baltimore, MD 21215          hscrc.maryland.gov 
 

  

 

 
 IN RE: THE PARTIAL RATE  * BEFORE THE HEALTH SERVICES 
 
APPLICATION OF THE      * COST REVIEW COMMISSION 
 
J. KENT McNEW      *          DOCKET:                    2020 
 
FAMILY MEDICAL CENTER  * FOLIO:         2333 
 
ANNAPOLIS, MARYLAND  * PROCEEDING:        2523N   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff Recommendation 
September 9, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

2 

Introduction 
 
On June 1, 2020, J. Kent McNew Family Medical Center (“the Hospital”) submitted a partial rate 
application to establish both a new Physical Therapy (PTH) rate and a new Speech Therapy 
(STH) rates.  The Hospital requested that the rates be set at the statewide median per RVU and 
be effective July 1, 2020. The J. Kent McNew Family Medical Center was opened by Anne 
Arundel Medical Center in the spring of this year as a stand-alone mental health facility that 
provides both inpatient and outpatient mental health services. It includes an acute inpatient 
mental health unit, a psychiatric day hospital (also referred to as a partial hospitalization 
program), and intensive outpatient treatment. 
 
 
Staff Evaluation 
 
HSCRC policy is to set the rates for new services at the lower of the statewide median or at a rate 
based on its projections. Therefore, staff requested that the Hospital submit to the Commission 
projected cost and statistical data for the requested new PTH and STH services.  Based on the 
information received, it was determined that the PTH rate based on the Hospital projection data 
would be $14.05 per RVU, while the statewide median rate for PTH services is $14.23 per RVU.  
The STH rate based on the Hospital projection data would be $12.28, while the statewide median 
rate for STH services is $11.72. 
 
 
 
 
       Estimated   FY20   Estimated  
                                Annual       Statewide          Revenue at    
              Volume (RVUs)      Median Rate           FY20 Rates   
Physical Therapy  

425 
$14.05  

$5,971 

Speech Therapy  
155 

$11.72  
$1,816 

     
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

3 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
After reviewing the Hospital’s application, the staff recommends: 
 

1. That the Commission waive its requirement (COMAR 10.37.10.07) that a hospital file a 
rate application at least 60 days before the operational opening of a new hospital, a 
revenue center, or a new service; 
 

2. That the PTH rate of $14.05 per RVU be approved effective July 1, 2020; 
 

3. That the STH rate of $11.72 per RVU be approved effective July 1, 2020; and  
 

4. That the PTH and STH rate centers not be rate realigned until a full year of cost data have 
been reported to the Commission. 

 
 

 











































     
 
 

COVID-19 Long-Term Care Partnership Grant (LTC) 
Approved Awards (as of 9/4/2020) 

 
This one-year funding program is intended to foster collaboration between hospitals and long-term care facilities/other congregate living facilities that serve 

vulnerable populations during the COVID-19 crisis. Hospitals and their partners will collaborate on strategies to reduce the spread of COVID-19 in these settings. 

 

2 

 

Lifebridge Health 
1. Siani Hospital 
2. Northwest Hospital 
3. Carroll Hospital 
4. Levindale Hospital 
5. Grace Medical Center 

 
 

Baltimore City, 
Baltimore 
County, Carroll 
County 

$1,169,200 Funding will support targeted resource sharing and data analytics.  Resource sharing 
interventions include telehealth, mobile health, and embedded clinicians and resource 
nurses.  The grant will also support IT investments, including software to link EMRs to 
support post-acute transitions of care and care management activities. 

MedStar 
1. Good Samaritan 

Hospital 
2. Franklin Square 

Hospital 
3. Harbor Hospital 
4. Montgomery Hospital 
5. Union Memorial 

 
 

Baltimore City, 
Baltimore 
County, Anne 
Arundel 
County, 
Montgomery 
County 

$1,258,125 Funding will enhance telehealth connections to geriatrics and other specialty services, 
particularly to provide consults for geriatric patients who transition from hospital to SNF 
settings.  Funding will also support data analytics work and provide performance 
management tools to improve quality outcomes.  

1. Meritus Medical 
Center 

Washington 
County  

$ 274,951 Funding will support resource sharing and quality improvement consultation that 
includes a quality hotline to receive questions related to COVID-19, weekly calls and 
regular meetings with SNF partners to support quality assistance, as well as on-site 
support as needed. 
 
 

1. Peninsula Regional 
Hospital 

Somerset 
County, 
Wicomico 
County, 
Worchester 
County 
 
 
 

$242,596. Funding will support quality improvement initiatives and the development of an 
interdisciplinary education program to train staff on best practices for managing 
COVID-19.  Funding will also support information sharing between partners related to 
COVID-19 challenges, as well as care transitions activities and technology platforms to 
support patient care management. 



     
 
 

COVID-19 Long-Term Care Partnership Grant (LTC) 
Approved Awards (as of 9/4/2020) 

 
This one-year funding program is intended to foster collaboration between hospitals and long-term care facilities/other congregate living facilities that serve 

vulnerable populations during the COVID-19 crisis. Hospitals and their partners will collaborate on strategies to reduce the spread of COVID-19 in these settings. 

 

3 

 

University of Maryland Medical 
System (UMMS) 

1. Baltimore Washington 
Medical Center 

2. Charles Regional 
Medical Center 

3. UM Medical Center 
4. UM Midtown 
5. Harford Memorial 

hospital 
6. Prince Georges 

Hospital Center 
7. Rehabilitation and 

Orthopedic Institute 
8. Shore Medical Center 

Easton 
9. Shore Medical Center 

Chestertown 
10. St. Joseph Medical 

Center 
11. Upper Chesapeake 

Medical Center 
 
 

Anne Arundel 
County, 
Baltimore 
County, 
Baltimore City, 
Caroline 
County, 
Charles 
County, Harford 
County, Kent 
County, Prince 
Georges 
County, Queen 
Anne’s County, 
Talbot County  

$1,750,000 Funding will support the deployment of drop teams, resource nursing and education 
and training to partnering SNFs. With their funding, UMMS will also expand their supply 
chain for procuring PPE. UMMS will provide resource nurses to partners during the 
outbreak to implement interventions appropriate to control the spread of COVID-19 in 
the facility.   

Western Maryland (WM)  $ 75,150 Funding will support an enhanced telehealth program to increase access to physician 
specialists in order to treat COVID-19 patients on-site and prevent unnecessary 
hospitalizations, where possible.  WM and its partner will also participate in the Clean 
Collaborative with the Maryland Patient Safety Center. 
 

 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
  
 
TO: Adam Kane, Chairman 
 
FROM: Thomas Werthman, AAG, HSCRC 
 
RE: Proposed Regulation for September 9, 2020 Meeting 
 
DATE: August 31,, 2020 
 
CC: Katie Wunderlich, Executive Director 
 
 Please be advised that the staff will be proposing an amendment to Commission regulation COMAR 
10.37.01.02 at the September Public Meeting.  This regulation concerns the Commission’s Accounting 
and Budget Manual (“Manual”) which has been incorporated by reference into the regulations.  As 
occurs annually, the proposed regulation amendment represents the compilation of technical changes 
made to the Manual over the course of the year.  This is supplement number 26.  The staff is requesting 
that the Commission forward the amendment to the Maryland Register for publication and public 
comment.  Following the comment period, staff will be bringing the amendment back to the 
Commission for final action. 
 



Title 10 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE 

Subtitle 37  HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION  

Chapter 01 Uniform Accounting and Reporting System for Hospitals and Related 

Institutions 

Authority: Health-General Article, §§19-207 and 19-215, Annotated Code of Maryland 

 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED ACTION 

The Health Services Cost Review Commission proposes to amend Regulation .02 under 

COMAR 10.37.01 Uniform Accounting and Reporting System for Hospitals and Related 

Institutions.  This action was considered and approved for promulgation by the Commission at 

an open meeting held on September 9, 2020, notice of which was given through publication in 

the Maryland Register, under General Provisions Article, §3-302(c), Annotated Code of 

Maryland.  If adopted, the proposed amendments will become effective on or about January 14, 

2021. 

Statement of Purpose 

The purpose of this action is to update the Commission’s manual entitled “Accounting 

and Budget Manual for Fiscal and Operating Management” (August, 1987), which has been 

incorporated by reference.  

Comparison to Federal Standards 

There is no corresponding federal standard to this proposed regulation. 

Estimate of Economic Impact 

The proposed action has no economic impact. 

Economic Impact on Small Businesses 

The proposed action has minimal or no economic impact on small business 



Impact on Individuals with Disabilities 

The proposed action has no impact on individuals with disabilities. 

Opportunity for Public Comment 

Comments may be sent to William Hoff, Chief, Audit and Compliance, Health Services 

Cost Review Commission, 4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215, or call 410-764-

3448, or email to william.hoff@maryland.gov, or fax to 410-358-6217.  Comments will be 

accepted through November 23, 2020.  A public hearing has not been scheduled.  

Adam Kane 

Chair 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 



Part C 

 

 

A. Fiscal Year in which regulations will become effective:    FY 2021 

 

B. Does the budget for fiscal year in which regulations become effective contain funds to 

implement the regulations? 

 

NO   

 

C If "yes", state whether general, special (exact name), or federal funds will be used:  

 

D. If "no", identify the source(s) of funds necessary for implementation of these regulations:   

 

 No funds are needed to implement the regulations. 

 

E. If these regulations have no economic impact under Part A, indicate reason briefly:  

 

The regulations merely instruct hospitals on how to account for and report their expenses 

and revenue. 

 

F. If these regulations have minimal or no economic impact on small businesses under Part 

B, indicate the reason and attach small business worksheet. 

 

 The regulations merely instruct hospitals on how to account for and report their expenses 

and revenues.  

 



SMALL BUSINESS ANALYSIS WORKSHEET 

 

Non-applicable 

 

1a. Intended Beneficiaries.  

 

1b. Intended Beneficiaries: Households.. 

 

1c. Intended Beneficiaries: Businesses.  

 

2a. Other Direct or Indirect Impacts: Adverse.   

 

2b. Other Direct or Indirect Impacts: Positive.   

 

3. Long-Term Impacts.   

 

4. Estimate of Economic Impact.   



The Health Services Cost Review Commission is an independent agency of the State of Maryland 
P: 410.764.2605    F: 410.358.6217          4160 Patterson Avenue  |  Baltimore, MD 21215      hscrc.maryland.gov 

Adam Kane, Esq 
Chairman 

Joseph Antos, PhD 
Vice-Chairman 

Victoria W. Bayless 

Stacia Cohen, RN, MBA 

John M. Colmers 

James N. Elliott, MD 

Sam Malhotra 

Katie Wunderlich 
Executive Director 

Allan Pack 
Director 
Population-Based Methodologies 

Open 
Director  
Payment Reform & Provider Alignment 

Gerard J. Schmith 
Director 
Revenue & Regulation Compliance 

William Henderson 
Director 
Medical Economics & Data Analytics 

TO: HSCRC Commissioners 

FROM: HSCRC Staff 

DATE: September 9, 2020 

RE: Hearing and Meeting Schedule 

October 14, 2020  To be determined - 4160 Patterson Avenue 
HSCRC/MHCC Conference Room 

November 12, 2020 To be determined – 4160 Patterson Avenue 
HSCRC/MHCC Conference Room 

The Agenda for the Executive and Public Sessions will be available for your 
review on the Thursday before the Commission meeting on the Commission’s 
website at http://hscrc.maryland.gov/Pages/commission-meetings.aspx. 

Post-meeting documents will be available on the Commission’s website 
following the Commission meeting. 


	DOCKETONGOINGPERMANENT (1).pdf
	DOCKETAUGUST2010

	MPA Discussion Slides for Sept Commission Meeting Final.pdf
	Preview of the MPA Recommendation
	Overview of the Medicare Performance Adjustment (MPA) Policy
	Review of MPA Attribution Method
	Review of Financial Benchmarking
	Overview of the Revised MPA Approach
	MC Benchmarking Results, % Above (Below) Benchmark	
	Convergence to the Benchmark Costs
	Attainment Adjusted MPA Growth Targets
	Review of the MPA and CTI Policy Overlaps
	Increased TCOC Accountability for MDPCP

	COVID Update and COVID Funding Policies v6 (1).pdf
	COVID Funding Update
	June and July 2020 Volumes are Close to Historic Levels
	June and July 2020 Volumes for Major Revenue Centers
	Update on COVID-19 Surge Policy
	Staff Recommendation on Termination of COVID Surge Funding
	CARES Act and Federal Funding Introduction
	CARES Act and Federal Funding ($ Millions)
	FY20 Undercharge Position ($ Millions)
	Undercharge/Overcharge Recognition Guidance




